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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Southwest Initiative Foundation 
Hutchinson, Minnesota  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwest Initiative 
Foundation (the Foundation), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, 
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of Southwest Initiative Foundation as of June 30, 2022 and 
2021, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Southwest Initiative Foundation, 
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there 
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Southwest 
Initiative Foundation‘s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the consolidated 
financial statements are available to be issued. 

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
CLAconnect.com 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the consolidated financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinion on the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated  
September 26, 2022 on our consideration of Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

St. Cloud, Minnesota 
September 26, 2022 
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2022 2021

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 747,896$         607,835$         
Restricted Cash 435,422           862,451           
Loans Receivable, Net 9,542,235        8,043,673        
Pledges Receivable -                       5,000               
Due from McKnight Foundation 2,500,000        1,000,000        
Other Receivables 783,285           194,104           
Prepaid Expenses 88,959             110,934           
Investments 83,793,796      95,213,421      
Property and Equipment, Net 2,543,756        2,641,542        

Total Assets 100,435,349$  108,678,960$  

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Grants and Other Payables 2,706,907$      2,427,749$      
Accrued Liabilities 1,195,459        988,489           
Assets Held on Donor's Behalf 1,575,410        1,826,058        
Obligations of Split-Interest Agreements 193,250           240,293           
Life Estate Liability 3,298,705        3,343,450        
Investment Trust Liability 406,245           431,018           
Notes Payable 967,004           1,616,574        
Bonds Payable, Net 445,320           661,858           

Total Liabilities 10,788,300      11,535,489      

NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions:

Board-Designated 19,772,005      28,049,555      
Undesignated 9,061,215        7,760,225        

Total Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 28,833,220      35,809,780      

With Donor Restrictions:
Purpose and Time Restricted 19,335,709      21,071,465      
Held in Perpetuity 41,478,120      40,262,226      

Total Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 60,813,829      61,333,691      

Total Net Assets 89,647,049      97,143,471      

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 100,435,349$  108,678,960$  
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Without With

Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions Total

REVENUE
McKnight Foundation Grants 277,093$              2,500,000$           2,777,093$           
Other Grants 5,533,586             132,520                5,666,106             
Contributions 141,092                2,463,712             2,604,804             
PPP Loan Forgiveness 385,458                -                            385,458                
Investment Loss (6,239,535)            (3,330,927)            (9,570,462)            
Loan Interest Income -                            430,382                430,382                
Discount on Below Market Loans -                            232,360                232,360                
Rental Income 68,901                  6,280                    75,181                  
Change in Split Interest Agreement -                            69,518                  69,518                  
Miscellaneous Income 23,655                  33,898                  57,553                  

Subtotal Revenue 190,250                2,537,743             2,727,993             
Net Assets Released from
  Restrictions and Transfers 3,057,605             (3,057,605)            -                            

Total Revenue 3,247,855             (519,862)               2,727,993             

EXPENSE
Program Expenses:

Grant Programs 1,780,963             -                            1,780,963             
Economic Development Programs 5,342,138             -                            5,342,138             
Affiliate Funds 1,640,557             -                            1,640,557             

Total Program Expenses 8,763,658             -                            8,763,658             

General and Administrative 824,862                -                            824,862                
Fund Development 635,895                -                            635,895                

Total Expense 10,224,415           -                            10,224,415           

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (6,976,560)            (519,862)               (7,496,422)            

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 35,809,780           61,333,691           97,143,471           

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR 28,833,220$         60,813,829$         89,647,049$         
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Without With

Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions Total

REVENUE
McKnight Foundation Grants 204,100$              -$                          204,100$              
Other Grants 5,598,459             668,990                6,267,449             
Contributions 1,018                    2,118,782             2,119,800             
PPP Loan Forgiveness 340,000                -                            340,000                
Investment Income 9,989,271             4,524,307             14,513,578           
Loan Interest Income -                            360,015                360,015                
Discount on Below Market Loans -                            169,699                169,699                
Rental Income 70,253                  -                            70,253                  
Change in Split Interest Agreement -                            229,065                229,065                
Miscellaneous Income 20,127                  15,217                  35,344                  

Subtotal Revenue 16,223,228           8,086,075             24,309,303           
Net Assets Released from
  Restrictions and Transfers 3,429,230             (3,429,230)            -                            

Total Revenue 19,652,458           4,656,845             24,309,303           

EXPENSE
Program Expenses:

Grant Programs 1,988,366             -                            1,988,366             
Economic Development Programs 6,158,104             -                            6,158,104             
Affiliate Funds 2,006,018             -                            2,006,018             

Total Program Expenses 10,152,488           -                            10,152,488           

General and Administrative 669,438                -                            669,438                
Fund Development 618,161                -                            618,161                

Total Expense 11,440,087           -                            11,440,087           

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 8,212,371             4,656,845             12,869,216           

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 27,597,409           56,676,846           84,274,255           

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR 35,809,780$         61,333,691$         97,143,471$         
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Economic Affiliate Total General and Fund
Programs Development Funds Program Administrative Development Total

Provision for Loan Losses -$                   (642,182)$      -$                   (642,182)$      -$                   -$                   (642,182)$      
Grants Made 471,789         4,555,000      1,593,503      6,620,292      -                     -                     6,620,292      
Salaries 477,937         514,122         -                     992,059         438,794         316,263         1,747,116      
Payroll Taxes 32,153           36,439           -                     68,592           30,337           21,862           120,791         
Fringe Benefits 77,211           81,547           -                     158,758         69,763           50,268           278,789         
Staff Travel 34,283           45,944           -                     80,227           2,874             11,967           95,068           
Board Expense 6,797             6,184             -                     12,981           7,479             4,577             25,037           
Staff and Board Development 10,630           6,205             -                     16,835           3,885             7,724             28,444           
Meetings 20,677           26,069           600                47,346           118                73                  47,537           
Contracted Services 63,476           94,914           -                     158,390         72,210           49,033           279,633         
Rent 193                174                -                     367                210                129                706                
Advertising 15,458           17,507           -                     32,965           15,532           10,905           59,402           
Printing 9,119             10,108           -                     19,227           14,323           26,308           59,858           
Telephone 12,448           14,133           -                     26,581           5,702             5,881             38,164           
Postage 6,578             7,392             57                  14,027           7,370             7,787             29,184           
Office Supplies 2,860             9,706             -                     12,566           2,560             2,304             17,430           
Subscriptions and Dues 18,433           21,170           -                     39,603           1,913             2,522             44,038           
Professional Fees 82,745           251,951         -                     334,696         24,471           16,513           375,680         
Insurance 7,820             7,502             -                     15,322           8,870             5,260             29,452           
Repairs and Maintenance 4,212             3,895             -                     8,107             4,722             2,830             15,659           
Depreciation 72,055           67,119           -                     139,174         81,973           48,842           269,989         
Public Relations 11,671           9,974             -                     21,645           3,892             5,474             31,011           
Strategic Planning 1,398             1,323             -                     2,721             1,609             943                5,273             
Utilities 11,245           10,530           -                     21,775           12,866           7,613             42,254           
Component Fund Fees -                     785                -                     785                -                     -                     785                
Interest Expense 6,280             26,625           -                     32,905           7,118             4,224             44,247           
Fundraising Costs -                     -                     42,555           42,555           -                     22,175           64,730           
Website 4,785             3,417             -                     8,202             4,148             3,014             15,364           
Miscellaneous Expense 318,710         154,585         3,842             477,137         2,123             1,404             480,664         

Total Expenses 1,780,963$    5,342,138$    1,640,557$    8,763,658$    824,862$       635,895$       10,224,415$  

Program Expenses
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Economic Affiliate Total General and Fund
Programs Development Funds Program Administrative Development Total

Provision for Loan Losses -$                   110,574$       -$                   110,574$       -$                   -$                   110,574$       
Grants Made 723,734         4,778,300      1,972,090      7,474,124      -                     -                     7,474,124      
Salaries 495,088         478,529         -                     973,617         365,954         329,113         1,668,684      
Payroll Taxes 32,375           34,024           -                     66,399           25,767           22,562           114,728         
Fringe Benefits 83,508           76,714           -                     160,222         59,403           53,363           272,988         
Staff Travel 8,749             20,790           -                     29,539           3,174             3,234             35,947           
Board Expense 2,862             2,352             -                     5,214             2,584             1,980             9,778             
Staff and Board Development 5,920             4,635             -                     10,555           4,343             6,098             20,996           
Meetings 59,727           24,911           -                     84,638           143                103                84,884           
Contracted Services 62,361           115,191         -                     177,552         56,579           51,008           285,139         
Rent 388                324                -                     712                325                271                1,308             
Advertising 19,992           18,598           -                     38,590           14,377           10,463           63,430           
Printing 8,803             7,599             -                     16,402           1,589             19,650           37,641           
Telephone 14,400           13,032           -                     27,432           6,177             8,030             41,639           
Postage 4,889             4,731             -                     9,620             8,401             11,058           29,079           
Office Supplies 2,521             5,692             -                     8,213             1,776             1,352             11,341           
Subscriptions and Dues 8,004             16,492           -                     24,496           1,937             2,489             28,922           
Professional Fees 158,357         224,516         -                     382,873         11,934           18,483           413,290         
Insurance 13,501           10,946           -                     24,447           -                     3,629             28,076           
Repairs and Maintenance 1,096             701                -                     1,797             -                     -                     1,797             
Depreciation 64,994           52,635           -                     117,629         78,372           45,217           241,218         
Public Relations 3,337             1,226             -                     4,563             6,923             1,241             12,727           
Strategic Planning 1,350             1,103             -                     2,453             1,621             936                5,010             
Utilities 10,848           8,958             -                     19,806           11,571           7,407             38,784           
Interest Expense 8,222             28,699           -                     36,921           4,224             5,764             46,909           
Fundraising Costs -                     -                     22,842           22,842           -                     8,702             31,544           
Website 3,225             1,717             -                     4,942             1,976             2,014             8,932             
Miscellaneous Expense 190,115         115,115         11,086           316,316         288                3,994             320,598         

Total Expenses 1,988,366$    6,158,104$    2,006,018$    10,152,488$  669,438$       618,161$       11,440,087$  

Program Expenses
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2022 2021

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets (7,496,422)$          12,869,216$         
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net
  Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 269,989                241,218                
Amortization of Discount on Bonds Payable and Issuance Costs 13,462                  13,463                  
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets (1,747)                  (475)                     
Paycheck Protection Program Loan Forgiveness (385,458)              (340,000)              
Net Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Investments 16,412,609           (11,791,811)          
Net Realized Gain on Sale of Investments (463,353)              (1,040,629)            
Loan Loss Provisions (579,804)              210,191                
Loan Charge Offs (62,378)                (99,617)                
Change in Present Value of Loans Receivable (232,360)              (169,699)              
Change in Value of Life Estate Liability (116,561)              (187,433)              
Contributions Restricted for Endowment Funds (1,101,944)            (1,125,770)            
(Increase) Decrease in:

Due from McKnight Foundation (1,500,000)            -                           
Pledges Receivable 5,000                    7,545                    
Other Receivables (589,181)              (60,093)                
Prepaid Expenses 21,975                  (51,861)                

Increase (Decrease) in:
Grants and Other Payables 255,458                147,108                
Accrued Liabilities 206,970                (142,419)              
Investment Trust Liability (24,773)                (36,293)                
Assets Held on Donor's Behalf (250,648)              237,326                

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 4,380,834             (1,320,033)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments on Loans Receivable 1,727,438             799,445                
Issuance of Loans Receivable (2,351,458)            (1,099,934)            
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 27,737,522           30,156,945           
Purchase of Investments (32,267,153)          (29,784,175)          
Purchase of Property and Equipment (128,489)              (361,290)              
Proceeds from Sale of Property and Equipment -                           475                       

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (5,282,140)            (288,534)              

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt -                           640,045                
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt (264,112)              (422,565)              
Principal Payments on Bonds Payable (230,000)              (225,000)              
Principal Payments on Financing Lease (18,267)                (9,298)                  
Contributions to Endowment Funds 1,126,717             1,156,537             

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 614,338                1,139,719             

NET CHANGE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH (286,968)              (468,848)              

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash - Beginning of Year 1,470,286             1,939,134             

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH - END OF YEAR 1,183,318$           1,470,286$           
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2022 2021

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Interest 25,617$                27,079$                

Acquisition of Financing Lease 51,115$                -$                         

Pay-off of Prior Financing Lease Obligation through Purchase of 
New Financing Lease Obligation 9,148$                  -$                         

RECONCILIATION OF CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH 
   PER THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS TO CASH, CASH 
   EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH PER THE CONSOLIDATED 
   STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and Cash Equivalents 747,896$              607,835$              
Restricted Cash 435,422                862,451                

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash per Consolidated 
Statements of Cash Flows 1,183,318$           1,470,286$           
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of the Foundation 

Southwest Initiative Foundation (the Foundation) is a nonprofit community foundation 
connecting people, investing in ideas, and building communities to create a southwest 
Minnesota where all people thrive. Working across 18 counties and two Native Nations, the 
Foundation has distributed more than $107 million through grant-making and business 
financing. The Foundation is supported by individuals, families, businesses, and 
organizations who want to keep this rural region going strong for the next generation. 
 
Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts and operations of 
SWIF Real Estate Holdings LLC. There are no transactions within SWIF Real Estate 
Holdings, LLC. 
 
Net assets and revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on donor-imposed 
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are classified 
and reported as follows: 
 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Resources over which the board of directors 
has discretionary control. Designated amounts represent those revenues which the 
board has set aside for a particular purpose. 
 
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Those resources subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions which will be satisfied by actions of the Foundation or passage of time. Other 
donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates those 
resources be maintained in perpetuity. The Foundation uses the income earned, 
including capital appreciation on related investments, for the purpose restricted by the 
donor.  

 
Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Foundation considers highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. Restricted cash, money market funds, and 
certificates of deposit included in investments are not intended to be available for current 
use and are not considered cash and cash equivalents for financial reporting purposes. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Investments 

Money market funds held for investment purposes are considered cash and cash 
equivalents within investments and are carried at deposit value. Donated real estate held for 
investments consist primarily of farmland and is recorded at fair value at the time of the 
donation. Equity and debt securities are reported at fair value based on quoted market 
prices in the consolidated statements of financial position. Realized and unrealized gains 
and losses are recognized in the period in which they occur and are included in the Change 
in Net Assets in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.  
 
Obligations of Split-Interest Agreements 

The Foundation has entered into an irrevocable charitable unitrust agreement with a certain 
donor. Under this contract, the annuitant transfers assets to the Foundation, and the 
Foundation makes periodic, fixed payments to the annuitants for life. The value of the assets 
transferred to the Foundation along with the age of the annuitant determines the amount of 
the periodic payments to the annuitant.  
 
Split interest obligations are recorded using the present value of the estimated future 
obligations based on mortality rates derived from ordinary life annuity tables and amounts 
that may be payable to third-party beneficiaries including other nonprofits. 
 
Life Estate Liability 

The Foundation holds land that is retained in donor’s life estates. These are recorded at fair 
market value at the time of the donation. The liability is adjusted annually based on the 
value of the land and the life expectancy of the donor.  
 
Investment Trust Liability 

The Foundation is the beneficiary of investments held within a trust agreement with a certain 
donor. Under this agreement, the trust assets transfer to the Foundation upon the death of 
the donor. The value of the assets was recorded at the fair market value at the time of the 
donation. The donor receives the income and appreciation on the investments on an annual 
basis. The liability is adjusted annually based on the present value discount rate and the life 
expectancy of the donor.  
 
Loans 

Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by an allowance for loan losses. 
Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until 
maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances 
adjusted for charge-offs and the allowance for loan losses. The Foundation has determined 
accounting for nonrefundable fees and costs associated with originating or acquiring loans 
does not have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements. As such, these fees 
and costs have been recognized during the period they are collected and incurred, 
respectively. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance.  
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Loans (Continued) 

The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued when a significant lapse in payment is 
identified, typically at the time the loan is 90 days past due unless staff believes the credit is 
well secured and is reasonably sure that all or part of the loan will be paid during the 
process of collection. Loans may be charged off at 120 days past due but are reviewed and 
charged off on individual circumstances. Past due status is based on contractual terms of 
the loan. Loans are generally placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier date if 
collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.  
 
All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual is reversed 
against interest income if the loan is charged off. The interest on these loans is accounted 
for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans 
are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due 
are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured. 
 
Allowance for Loan Losses 

The allowance for loan losses (allowance) is an estimate of loan losses inherent in the 
Foundation’s loan portfolio. The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses 
which is charged to expense. Additions to the allowance are expected to maintain the 
adequacy of the total allowance after loan losses and loan growth. Loan losses are charged 
off against the allowance when the Foundation determines the loan balance proves to be 
uncollectible. Cash received on previously charged off amounts is recorded as a recovery to 
charged off loans. 
 
The allowance calculation consists of five levels for the Business Finance Program and 
three levels for the Microenterprise Loan Program and individual loan reserves are adjusted 
periodically for economic factors based on the risks present for each loan. These economic 
factors include consideration of the following: changes in the lending policies and 
underwriting practices, national and local economic conditions, changes in portfolio volume, 
changes in staff experience, changes in past due and nonaccrual loans, changes in credit 
quality, change in payment history, changes in loan review and oversight, impact and effects 
of concentrations, and impact of competition. These factors are inherently subjective and are 
driven by the repayment risk associated with each loan. 
 
Based on current information and events, a loan is considered impaired when it is probable 
that the Foundation will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest 
when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is 
impaired, the Foundation measures impairment based on an observable market price or the 
fair value of the collateral if collateral dependent. A loan is collateral dependent if the 
repayment is expected to be provided solely by the underlying collateral. When a loan does 
become uncollectible, it will be charged directly to the allowance in the current year.  
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 

The risk ratings can be grouped into the following categories for Business Finance and 
Microenterprise loans, respectively: 
 

Business Finance Program: 

Risk Classification (Reserve Level 6% of Principal Balance) 

The loan is current. There are no violations of loan covenants. The borrower’s financial 
condition is exceptional or strong. There are no liens against the company. 
 
Risk Classification (Reserve Level 8% of Principal Balance) 

The loan is current. The borrower’s financial condition is adequate and all items of the 
Risk Classification apply. 
 
Risk Classification (Reserve Level 10% of Principal Balance) 

The loan is current. Either the borrower’s financial condition is marginal or the financial 
condition is adequate or strong and there are liens against the company; or the borrower 
has violated a loan covenant. Staff will meet to discuss the status of the loan and 
additional servicing attention is needed. 
 
Risk Classification (Reserve Level 25% of Principal Balance) 

The loan is current, but payments are spotty. Financial condition of the company is 
substandard. There are violations of loan covenants. 
 
Risk Classification (Reserve Level 100% of Principal Balance) 

The loan is 30 days or more past due. The financial condition is Liquidate. There are 
violations of loan covenants. The Foundation has a secured interest in the company. 
 
Microenterprise Loan Program: 

Risk Classification (Reserve Levels 5% and 10% of Principal Balance) 

The loan is current. Borrower’s financial condition is adequate for the business. There 
are no violations of the loan covenants. Technical Assistance is accepted by client and 
working well. Two columns are represented due to the USDA RMAP micro-lending 
program requiring a 5% loan loss reserve for these conditions, where SBA micro-lending 
program requires a 15% loan loss reserve. 
 
Risk Classification (Reserve Level 25% of Principal Balance) 

The loan is current, but payments may have been missed in the past. Borrower’s 
financial condition is weakened. Borrower’s personal or business capacity/capability has 
deteriorated. There are minor violations of loan covenants. Technical Assistance is 
accepted, but client does not always follow through. Foundation’s collateral position is 
still adequate. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 

Microenterprise Loan Program (Continued): 

Risk Classification (Reserve Levels 75% and 100% of Principal Balance) 

Loan is 30 days or more past due, with little chance of becoming current. Borrower’s 
financial condition is seriously deteriorated; cannot currently meet financial obligations to 
lenders or vendors. Borrower’s personal or business capacity is inadequate to handle 
the needs of the business. There are violations of loan covenants. Technical Assistance 
directives are not adequately being followed through. Foundation’s collateral position is 
weak. 

 

Recognizing that economic trends in the industry as well as specific indicators are closely 
correlated to the credit quality of the loans, the Foundation factors this in and maintains a 
separate general valuation allowance for various portfolio segments. These portfolio 
segments are described as follows: 
 

Agriculture: The Agriculture portfolio consists of 20 loans split between Business 
Finance (18) and Microenterprise (2) lending scheduled to be amortized over various 
lengths of time. 
 

Childcare Providers: The Childcare Providers segment consists of 6 loans split 
between Business Finance (2) and Microenterprise (4) lending scheduled to be 
amortized over various lengths of time. 
 

Construction: The Construction segment consists of 1 loan in Microenterprise (1) 
lending scheduled to be amortized over a certain length of time. 
 

Consulting: The Consulting segment consists of -0- loans at this time.  
 

Government: The Government segment consists of 1 loan in Business Finance (1) 
lending scheduled to be amortized over a certain length of time. 
 

Healthcare: The Healthcare portfolio consists of 6 loans split between Business Finance 
(4) and Microenterprise (2) lending scheduled to be amortized over various lengths of 
time.  
 

Hospitality: The Hospitality portfolio consists of 17 loans split between Business 
Finance (15) and Microenterprise (2) lending scheduled to be amortized over various 
lengths of time. 
 

Manufacturing: The Manufacturing portfolio consists of 27 loans split between Business 
Finance (19) and Microenterprise (8) lending scheduled to be amortized over various 
lengths of time. 
 

Nonprofit: The Nonprofit segment consists of 3 loans in Business Finance (3) lending 
scheduled to be amortized over various lengths of time. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 

Real Estate: The Real Estate portfolio consists of 9 loans split between Business 
Finance (8) and Microenterprise (1) lending scheduled to be amortized over various 
lengths of time. 
 

Retail: The Retail portfolio consists of 47 loans split between Business Finance (26) and 
Microenterprise (21) lending scheduled to be amortized over various lengths of time. 
 

Service: The Service portfolio consists of 163 loans split between Business Finance 
(115) and Microenterprise (48) lending scheduled to be amortized over various lengths 
of time.  
 

Utilities: The Utilities segment consists of -0- loans at this time. 
 
Although management believes the allowance to be adequate, losses may vary from its 
estimates.  
 
Pledges Receivable 

Pledges to give are recorded at their net realizable value. Conditional pledges are not 
included as support until such time as the conditions are substantially met. At June 30, 2022 
and 2021, the Foundation has not recorded a reserve for uncollectible pledges. 
 
Due from McKnight Foundation 

McKnight Foundation has granted $2,500,000 during the year ended June 30, 2022 to 
support the general operations of the Foundation. As of June 30, 2022, $2,500,000 is 
outstanding and is expected to be received in $500,000/year installments through year 
ended June 30, 2027.  
 
McKnight Foundation had granted $3,000,000 in a prior year to support the general 
operations of the Foundation. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, $-0- and $1,000,000 was 
outstanding.  
 
Contributions 

The Foundation records contributions in accordance with applicable accounting standards, 
which require unconditional promises to give (pledges) be recorded as receivables and 
revenues and requires the organization to distinguish between contributions received for 
each net asset category in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions. Conditional 
promises to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are 
substantially met and the promises become unconditional. 
 
Revenue Recognition 

Grant revenue is recognized in the period the grant was awarded, provided it is 
unconditional, and is recorded as with or without donor restrictions, depending on the 
grantor’s intent. Grant amounts awarded and in which the conditions have been met, but not 
received, are reported as Other Receivables in the consolidated statements of financial 
position. Grant revenue for which donor restrictions are met in the year the revenue is 
received, is considered without donor restrictions.  
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Revenue Recognition (Continued) 

A portion of the Organization’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and 
grants. Amounts received are recognized as earned and are reported as revenue when the 
Organization has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant 
provisions. Amounts received but not yet earned are reported as deferred revenue in the 
consolidated statements of financial position. Conditional promises to give amount to 
$809,330 and $607,415 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Conditional promises 
to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. 
Conditions are met when the qualifying expenses based on specific criteria are incurred. 
The Organization was awarded cost-reimbursable grants of $306,210 and $297,796, 
respectively, for which qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred and therefore 
have not been recognized. Unconditional promises to give due in subsequent years are 
recorded at their net realizable value. 
 
Investment earnings on contributions and grants are recorded in with or without donor 
restrictive net assets when earned. 
 
Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property is stated at fair value at the 
time of the donation. Major renewals and improvements are charged to the property and 
equipment accounts, while replacements, maintenance, and repairs, which do not improve 
or extend the lives of the assets, are expensed currently. Depreciation of physical plant and 
equipment has been recorded using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives 
ranging from 3 to 40 years. It is the Foundation’s policy to capitalize property and equipment 
that has a unit cost equal to or greater than $1,000. 
 
Annuities Payable 

Annuities payable consists of two gift annuity agreements, which provide for payments to 
the grantors for life. Assets received under these agreements are recorded at fair value. A 
liability related to future payments under these agreements has been recorded at the 
present value at June 30, 2022 and 2021, using discount rates of 4.4% in both years. 
Contribution income is recognized for the difference between the initial contributed asset 
and related liability.  
 
The liability related to split-interest agreements is recalculated annually, with the 
amortization of discounts and adjustments for changes to life expectancies recognized as 
actuarial liability adjustments on the consolidated statements of activities. Annuities Payable 
is combined with Grants and Other Payables on the consolidated statements of financial 
position. 
 
Assets Held on Donor’s Behalf 

Assets held on donor’s behalf at June 30, 2022 and 2021 consist of 21 funds for both the 
years then ended, in which the beneficiaries were designated by the donor at the time the 
funds were established. Therefore, the Foundation is obligated to specific beneficiaries with 
regard to the distribution of these funds. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Advertising 

The Foundation follows the policy of charging the cost of advertising to expense as incurred. 
Advertising expense was $59,402 and $63,430 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 
2021, respectively.  
 
Functional Allocation of Expense 

Salaries and related expenses are allocated based on the best estimates of management. 
Expenses, other than salaries and related expenses, which are not directly identifiable by 
program or supporting service, are allocated based on the best estimates of management 
and follow a pre-established allocation plan based on job descriptions of each employee. 
 
Fair Value Measurements 

The Foundation categorizes its assets and liabilities measured at fair value into a three-level 
hierarchy based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair 
value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs 
(Level 3). If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within 
different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. Assets and liabilities valued at fair value are 
categorized based on the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows: 
 

Level 1 – Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that the Foundation has the ability to access.  
 
Level 2 – Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active 
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these 
instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar 
characteristics, or discounted cash flows. 
 
Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically 
based on an entity’s own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity. 
 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Foundation may remeasure the carrying value of 
assets and liabilities measured on a nonrecurring basis to fair value. Adjustments to fair 
value usually result when certain assets are impaired. Such assets are written down from 
their carrying amounts to their fair value. 
 
Professional standards allow entities the irrevocable option to elect to measure certain 
financial instruments and other items at fair value for the initial and subsequent 
measurement on an instrument-by-instrument basis.  
 
The Foundation has not elected to measure any existing financial instruments at fair value. 
However, it may elect to measure newly acquired financial instruments at fair value in the 
future. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Program Grants 

Program grants are recorded as expense when approved and the conditions on which they 
depend are substantially met. Cancellations of grants occur when the grantees do not meet 
the grant terms or when grant program needs are less than the appropriated amount.  
 
Tax-Exempt Status 

The Foundation is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and similar state income tax laws. The Foundation is a nonprivate 
foundation and contributions to the organization qualify as a charitable tax deduction by the 
contributor. SWIF Real Estate Holdings LLC is a 100% owned LLC and is considered a 
disregarded entity for tax purposes. It is the policy of the Foundation, in accordance with 
GAAP, to assess any uncertain tax provisions and, if necessary, record a tax asset or 
liability, and the related income tax expense, for any uncertain tax provisions. The 
Foundation does not have any uncertain tax positions or unrelated business income. 
 
The Foundation follows the accounting standards for contingencies in evaluating uncertain 
tax positions. This guidance prescribes recognition threshold principles for the financial 
statement recognition of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return that are 
not certain to be realized. The Foundation’s tax returns are subject to review and 
examination by federal and state authorities.  
 
Subsequent Events 

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Foundation has evaluated events 
and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through September 26, 2022, the 
date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  
 
 

NOTE 2 PPP LOAN FORGIVENESS 

The Foundation is following ASC 470, Debt, to account for the initial receipts related to the 
PPP Loans. On March 12, 2021 and February 10, 2022, respectively, the SBA processed 
the Foundation’s PPP Loan forgiveness applications for the first draw and second draw PPP 
Loans and notified Citizens Bank & Trust Co. that both PPP Loans qualified for full 
forgiveness. Loan proceeds were received by the bank from the SBA on these respective 
dates. Therefore, the Foundation was legally released from the debts and loan forgiveness 
has been recorded as PPP Loan Forgiveness, which is included in revenue during both the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2022, respectively.  
 
The SBA may review funding eligibility and usage of funds for compliance with program 
requirements based on dollar thresholds and other factors. The amount of liability, if any, 
from potential noncompliance cannot be determined with certainty; however, management is 
of the opinion that any review will not have a material adverse impact on the Foundation’s 
financial position. 
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NOTE 3 CONCENTRATIONS  

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Foundation to concentrations of credit risk 
consist primarily of cash, receivables, and investments in marketable securities. 
 
Cash on deposit with financial institutions in excess of $250,000 is collateralized by the 
depository, to mitigate any losses. 
 
The Foundation’s fundraising efforts and economic loan activity exists primarily in the 
18 counties of southwest Minnesota. In the event of any economic downturns, it could have 
an impact on the organization. 
 
The grants from the McKnight Foundation are considered a significant source of operating 
revenue. The McKnight Foundation awarded a five-year unconditional grant of $2,500,000 
at the end of June 30, 2022 which will be paid to the Foundation in $500,000 amounts over 
the next five years: FY2023, FY2024, FY2025, FY2026, and FY2027. The prior McKnight 
unconditional grant was for $3,000,000 and covered fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, 
June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022. 
 
 

NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS 

The carrying value of investments is comprised of the following at June 30: 
 

Amount Percent Amount Percent
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,000,317$       10 % 7,365,746$       8 %
US Government Obligations 2,663,300         3 3,785,276         4
Corporate Bonds 6,784,680         8 9,834,588         10
Stock Mutual Funds 31,597,193       38 38,943,839       41
Equity Securities 531,947            1 489,416            1
Taxable Bond Mutual Funds 9,603,236         10 7,096,196         7
Foreign Bonds, Notes, and Debentures 2,848                - 2,247                -         
Alternative Investments 14,678,449       18 17,717,244       19
Charitable Remainder 
  Trust Investments 193,250            - 240,293            -
Donated Real Estate Held as Investments 8,009,085         10 8,009,085         8
Investment Held in Trust 1,729,491         2 1,729,491         2

Totals 83,793,796$     100 % 95,213,421$     100 %

2022 2021

 
 
The composition of investment income is as follows for the years ended June 30: 
 

2022 2021
Interest and Dividends on Investments 6,705,989$      1,995,845$      
Realized Gain on Investments 463,353           1,040,629        
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments (16,412,609)     11,791,811      
Investment Fees (327,195)          (314,707)          

Total (9,570,462)$     14,513,578$    
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NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Donated Real Estate Held as Investments 

The Foundation holds contributed land as investment at the lower of fair value when land 
was received and current net realizable value. The carrying amount is $8,009,085 as of both 
June 30, 2022 and 2021. The Foundation obtains rental income from the parcels without life 
estate beneficiaries and does not plan to sell the land. 
 
Investment Held in Trust 

The Foundation is the beneficiary in a trust administered by another trustee. A fund has 
been created to follow donor intent and a receivable was recorded at the fair market value of 
the assets invested and held by the trustee. The Foundation will receive the funds upon the 
death of the donor. 

 
 

NOTE 5 LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET OF ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 

Low interest loans are discounted at a current market rate at the date of inception and 
recorded at their net present value.  
 
Interest income is recognized on loans receivable at the rate stated in each loan agreement 
and is accrued through each period. Interest rates range from 0% - 8% for both 2022 and 
2021. The Foundation has commitments on loans approved but not disbursed as of 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 of $836,500 and $405,000, respectively. A loan is considered past 
due once a payment date has been missed. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, eleven and nine 
loans, respectively, were greater than 90 days past due. Any loans greater than 90 days 
past due may start the process of being added to nonaccrual. Once a loan is determined to 
be nonaccrual, it is removed from the greater than 90-day category and maintained 
separately as a nonaccrual loan. Southwest Initiative Foundation has $401,322 and 
$271,157 on nonaccrual at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
 
For the years 2022 and 2021, $830,295 and $640,512, respectively, of loans receivable 
were pledged as security to the underlying notes payable.  
 
Loans receivable maturities, and related discounts and allowances consisted of the following 
at June 30: 
 

2022 2021
Loans Receivable Maturities:

Current 1,965,166$      1,675,866$      
Long-Term 9,681,777        9,411,450        

Total Loans Receivable Maturities 11,646,943      11,087,316      
Discount for Below Market Interest Rates (131,300)          (363,660)          
Allowance for Uncollectible Loan (1,938,894)       (2,643,454)       
Loan Participation (34,514)            (36,529)            

Net Loans Receivable 9,542,235$      8,043,673$      
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NOTE 5 LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET OF ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 

(CONTINUED) 

Loans receivable and the allowance for loan losses accounts at June 30 consist of the 
following: 
 

2022 2021
Agriculture 1,384,680$      1,661,232$      
Childcare Providers 90,423             96,420             
Construction 19,604             8,943               
Government 240,000           240,000           
Healthcare 652,838           477,981           
Hospitality 710,649           486,942           
Manufacturing 2,527,481        2,632,447        
Nonprofit 178,323           169,126           
Real Estate 654,992           622,869           
Retail 1,431,354        1,270,973        
Service 3,756,599        3,420,383        
Less: Allowance, Discount, and Participation (2,104,708)       (3,043,643)       

Net Loans Receivable 9,542,235$      8,043,673$      
 

 
Transactions in the allowance for loan losses during the years ended June 30 are 
summarized as follows: 
 

2022 2021
Balance at Beginning of Year 2,643,454$      2,632,497$      

Provision (642,182)          110,574           
Loans Charged Off (62,378)            (99,617)            

Balance at End of Year 1,938,894$      2,643,454$      
 

 



SOUTHWEST INITIATIVE FOUNDATION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 
 
 
 

(23) 

 
NOTE 5 LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET OF ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) 

The allowance for loan losses and recorded investment in loans at June 30, 2022 is as follows: 
 

06/30/21 Provision Charged Off Recovered 06/30/22 06/30/21 Provision Charged Off Recovered 06/30/22 Total

Agriculture 405,407$        (234,760)$       -$                    -$                    170,647$        8,653$            (1,282)$           -$                    -$                    7,371$            178,018$        

Childcare Providers 78,568            (6,081)             -                      -                      72,487            4,595              (452)                -                      -                      4,143              76,630            

Construction -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,941              -                      -                      2,941              2,941              

Consulting 24,000            (24,000)           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Government 47,602            (23,602)           -                      -                      24,000            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      24,000            

Healthcare 86,498            (21,714)           -                      -                      64,784            759                 (9)                    -                      -                      750                 65,534            

Hospitality 894                 115,641          -                      -                      116,535          143                 604                 -                      -                      747                 117,282          

Manufacturing 605,002          (182,934)         -                      -                      422,068          28,538            (3,215)             -                      -                      25,323            447,391          

Nonprofit 34,378            (16,546)           -                      -                      17,832            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      17,832            

Real Estate 202,069          (118,311)         -                      -                      83,758            -                      4,098              -                      -                      4,098              87,856            

Retail 453,405          (123,671)         (62,378)           -                      267,356          50,997            6,611              -                      -                      57,608            324,964          

Service 519,487          (8,567)             -                      -                      510,920          92,459            (6,933)             -                      -                      85,526            596,446          

Total 2,457,310$     (644,545)$       (62,378)$         -$                    1,750,387$     186,144$        2,363$            -$                    -$                    188,507$        1,938,894$     

Business Finance Change in Loan Loss Reserve Micro Loan Change in Loan Loss Reserve

 
 
The allowance for loan losses and recorded investment in loans at June 30, 2021 is as follows: 
 

06/30/20 Provision Charged Off Recovered 06/30/21 06/30/20 Provision Charged Off Recovered 06/30/21 Total

Agriculture 348,121$        57,286$          -$                    -$                    405,407$        34,649$          (25,996)$         -$                    -$                    8,653$            414,060$        

Childcare Providers 60,902            17,666            -                      -                      78,568            7,308              (2,713)             -                      -                      4,595              83,163            

Construction 2,449              (2,449)             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Consulting 16,797            7,203              -                      -                      24,000            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      24,000            

Government -                      47,602            -                      -                      47,602            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      47,602            

Healthcare 23,910            62,588            -                      -                      86,498            3,674              (2,915)             -                      -                      759                 87,257            

Hospitality 95,461            (94,567)           -                      -                      894                 76                   67                   -                      -                      143                 1,037              

Manufacturing 479,182          125,820          -                      -                      605,002          35,743            (7,205)             -                      -                      28,538            633,540          

Nonprofit 74,586            (40,208)           -                      -                      34,378            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      34,378            

Real Estate 225,825          (23,756)           -                      -                      202,069          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      202,069          

Retail 519,678          (25,605)           (40,668)           -                      453,405          70,098            (10,152)           (8,949)             -                      50,997            504,402          

Service 501,959          17,528            -                      -                      519,487          132,079          (39,620)           -                      -                      92,459            611,946          

Utilities -                      50,000            (50,000)           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Total 2,348,870$     199,108$        (90,668)$         -$                    2,457,310$     283,627$        (88,534)$         (8,949)$           -$                    186,144$        2,643,454$     

Business Finance Change in Loan Loss Reserve Micro Loan Change in Loan Loss Reserve
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NOTE 5 LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET OF ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) 

The following table shows the loans at June 30, 2022 allocated by management’s internal risk ratings: 
 

Risk Rate % Range Total Loans Total Loans

FY22 Loans Receivable 6.0% 8.0% 10.0% 25.0% 100.0% Receivable 5.0% 10.0% 25.0% 100.0% Receivable

Credit Risk Profile by

  Risk Rating:

Agriculture -$                     -$                     1,224,460$      85,558$           53,622$           1,363,640$      -$                     -$                     12,594$           8,446$             21,040$           

Childcare Providers -                       -                       -                       -                       74,256             74,256             -                       -                       13,304             2,863               16,167             

Construction -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       19,604             -                       19,604             

Government -                       -                       240,000           -                       -                       240,000           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Healthcare -                       -                       647,843           -                       -                       647,843           -                       -                       4,995               -                       4,995               

Hospitality -                       -                       479,469           210,150           16,051             705,670           -                       -                       4,979               -                       4,979               

Manufacturing -                       -                       1,491,830        799,539           146,000           2,437,369        -                       27,994             43,811             18,307             90,112             

Nonprofit -                       -                       178,323           -                       -                       178,323           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Real Estate -                       84,415             392,064           151,192           -                       627,671           -                       -                       27,321             -                       27,321             

Retail -                       -                       733,374           213,233           182,245           1,128,852        -                       -                       284,587           17,915             302,502           

Service -                       -                       2,615,275        581,352           185,235           3,381,862        -                       6,722               322,782           45,233             374,737           

Total -$                     84,415$           8,002,638$      2,041,024$      657,409$         10,785,486$    -$                     34,716$           733,977$         92,764$           861,457$         

Business Finance Loans Microenterprise Loans

 
 

The following table shows the loans at June 30, 2021 allocated by management’s internal risk ratings: 
 

Risk Rate % Range Total Loans Total Loans

FY21 Loans Receivable 6.0% 8.0% 10.0% 25.0% 100.0% Receivable 5.0% 10.0% 25.0% 100.0% Receivable

Credit Risk Profile by

  Risk Rating:

Agriculture -$                     921,848$         177,431$         537,728$         -$                     1,637,007$      -$                     -$                     13,839$           10,386$           24,225$           

Childcare Providers -                       -                       -                       7,967               72,593             80,560             -                       -                       12,166             3,694               15,860             

Construction -                       8,943               -                       -                       -                       8,943               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Government -                       240,000           -                       -                       -                       240,000           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Healthcare -                       476,020           -                       -                       -                       476,020           -                       -                       634                  1,327               1,961               

Hospitality -                       233,326           252,661           -                       -                       485,987           -                       -                       955                  -                       955                  

Manufacturing -                       1,285,641        730,101           540,209           -                       2,555,951        -                       -                       50,497             25,999             76,496             

Nonprofit -                       52,689             116,437           -                       -                       169,126           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Real Estate 90,183             178,722           -                       353,964           -                       622,869           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Retail -                       364,815           92,634             380,390           198,705           1,036,544        -                       649                  197,060           36,720             234,429           

Service -                       2,006,417        914,469           158,648           22,166             3,101,700        -                       3,586               236,590           78,507             318,683           

Total 90,183$           5,768,421$      2,283,733$      1,978,906$      293,464$         10,414,707$    -$                     4,235$             511,741$         156,633$         672,609$         

Business Finance Loans Microenterprise Loans
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NOTE 5 LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET OF ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) 

The following table shows an aging at June 30, 2022 analysis of loan portfolio by time past due: 
 

FY22 Loans Receivable

Current 
Balance

30-89 Days 
Past Due

More Than 90 
Days Past Due

Total on 
Nonaccrual

Total Loans 
Receivable

Current 
Balance

30-89 Days 
Past Due

More Than 90 
Days Past Due

Total on 
Nonaccrual

Total Loans 
Receivable

Agriculture 1,363,640$      -$                     -$                     -$                     1,363,640$      21,040$           -$                     -$                     -$                     21,040$           

Childcare Providers 7,073               -                       67,183             -                       74,256             16,167             -                       -                       -                       16,167             

Construction -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       19,604             -                       -                       -                       19,604             

Government 240,000           -                       -                       -                       240,000           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Healthcare 647,843           -                       -                       -                       647,843           4,995               -                       -                       -                       4,995               

Hospitality 705,670           -                       -                       -                       705,670           4,979               -                       -                       -                       4,979               

Manufacturing 2,291,369        -                       146,000           -                       2,437,369        81,731             -                       8,381               8,381               90,112             

Nonprofit 178,323           -                       -                       -                       178,323           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Real Estate 627,671           -                       -                       -                       627,671           27,321             -                       -                       -                       27,321             

Retail 1,067,841        -                       61,011             19,722             1,128,852        301,737           -                       765                  7,897               302,502           

Service 3,346,862        -                       35,000             -                       3,381,862        374,737           -                       -                       4,958               374,737           

Total 10,476,292$    -$                     309,194$         19,722$           10,785,486$    852,311$         -$                     9,146$             21,236$           861,457$         

Business Finance Loans Microenterprise Loans

Accruing Interest Accruing Interest

 
 

The following table shows an aging at June 30, 2021 analysis of loan portfolio by time past due: 
 

FY21 Loans Receivable

Current 
Balance

30-89 Days 
Past Due

More Than 90 
Days Past Due

Total on 
Nonaccrual

Total Loans 
Receivable

Current 
Balance

30-89 Days 
Past Due

More Than 90 
Days Past Due

Total on 
Nonaccrual

Total Loans 
Receivable

Agriculture 1,637,007$      -$                     -$                     -$                     1,637,007$      24,225$           -$                     -$                     -$                     24,225$           

Childcare Providers 80,560             -                       -                       72,593             80,560             15,860             -                       -                       -                       15,860             

Construction 8,943               -                       -                       -                       8,943               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Government 240,000           -                       -                       -                       240,000           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Healthcare 476,020           -                       -                       -                       476,020           1,961               -                       -                       -                       1,961               

Hospitality 485,987           -                       -                       -                       485,987           955                  -                       -                       -                       955                  

Manufacturing 2,555,951        -                       -                       -                       2,555,951        76,496             -                       -                       -                       76,496             

Nonprofit 169,126           -                       -                       -                       169,126           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Real Estate 622,869           -                       -                       -                       622,869           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Retail 914,477           61,011             61,056             184,085           1,036,544        234,429           -                       -                       8,321               234,429           

Service 3,101,700        -                       -                       -                       3,101,700        318,683           -                       -                       6,158               318,683           

Total 10,292,640$    61,011$           61,056$           256,678$         10,414,707$    672,609$         -$                     -$                     14,479$           672,609$         

Business Finance Loans Microenterprise Loans

Accruing Interest Accruing Interest
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NOTE 5 LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET OF ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 

(CONTINUED) 

Interest income foregone on nonaccrual loans approximated $8,232 and $3,312 for the 
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
 
There were six impaired loans with a loan loss reserve of 100% in the amount of $193,063 
as of June 30, 2022, and three impaired loans with a loan loss reserve of 100% in the 
amount of $122,067 as of June 30, 2021. 
 
The Foundation does not have material commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers 
with loans whose terms have been modified in troubled debt restructurings or whose loans 
are on nonaccrual. 
 
 

NOTE 6 PLEDGES RECEIVABLE 

Pledges receivable are due to be collected as follows: 
 

2022 2021
Pledges Expected to be Collected in:

One to Five Years -$                     5,000$             
Total -$                     5,000$             

 
 
All pledges receivable is considered collectible and there is no allowance for uncollectible 
amounts.  
 
 

NOTE 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The Foundation’s property, furniture, and equipment is as follows: 
 

2022 2021
Land and Land Improvements 1,227,467$      1,227,467$      
Buildings 1,655,624        1,655,624        
Furniture and Equipment 1,457,646        1,406,970        

Subtotal 4,340,737        4,290,061        
Accumulated Depreciation (1,796,981)       (1,648,519)       

Net Investment in Property and Equipment 2,543,756$      2,641,542$      
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NOTE 8 FINANCING LEASES 

The Foundation determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Financing leases are 
included as a right-of-use (“ROU”) asset (in Property and Equipment, Net), and as a lease 
liability (in Grants and Other Payables) on the consolidated statements of financial position. 
ROU assets represent the Foundation’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term 
and lease liabilities represent the Foundation’s obligation to make lease payments arising 
from the lease. ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at a commencement date based 
on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. Lease terms may include 
options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Foundation 
will exercise that option.  
 
During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Foundation entered into a financing lease for 
office equipment upon termination of the prior financing lease from the year ended June 30, 
2018. At both June 30, 2022 and 2021, the financing lease cost were $51,115 and $44,400, 
respectively, and the corresponding amortization of right-of-use assets were $7,099 and 
$32,560, respectively. Amortization of the right-of-use assets is included in depreciation 
expense. 
 
The following tables provide quantitative and qualitative information concerning the 
Foundation’s leases. 
 
Description 2022 2021

Lease Liability - Office Equipment;
Interest at 7.84%; Monthly Installments of
$1,329, Matures 2023. Paid in full in 2022. -$                     13,583$           

Lease Liability - Office Equipment;
Interest at 7.00%; Monthly Installments of
$1,224, Matures 2025. 46,431             -                       

Less: Current Maturities of Lease Liability (14,688)            (10,054)            

Lease Liability, Net of Current Maturities 31,743$           3,529$             
 

 
Year Ending June 30, Amount

2023 14,688$           
2024 14,688             
2025 14,688             
2026 8,568               

Total Lease Cost 52,632             
Less: Amount Representing Interest

on Lease Liability (6,201)              
Net Lease Cost 46,431$           
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT 

The Foundation’s long-term debt at June 30 consists of the following: 
 
Description 2022 2021

Note Payable - U.S. Small Business Administration
Face Amount $1,250,000, Interest at -0-%, Due 
May 2023, Monthly Interest and Principal Payments, 
Secured by the Foundation's Microenterprise Loan Program. 141,738$            296,361$            

Note Payable - U.S. Small Business Administration
Face Amount $337,000, Bears interest at -0-%, Due 
October 2022, Monthly Interest and Principal Payments, 
Secured by the Foundation's Microenterprise Loan Program. 12,482                49,926                

Note Payable - U.S. Department of Agriculture
Face Amount $500,000, Bears Interest at 2.0%, Due 
2031, Annual Interest and Principal Payments Required 
Starting July 2013, Secured by the Foundation's Business
Finance Program, Including a Portfolio of Investments 
from the Proceeds of this Loan Award, Along with Real 
and Personal Property, and Other Rights and Interests 
the USDA may require. 272,307              300,242              

Bonds Payable - Commercial Development Revenue Bonds
Face Amount $1,830,000, Original Discount $18,300, 
Interest at 0.48% to 1.58%, Due March 1, 2024, Annual 
Principal Payments of $225,000 to $235,000, Secured 
by Foundation's Revenues. 470,000              700,000              

Note Payable - Southwest Minnesota Housing Partnership
Face Amount $50,000, Bears no Interest, The Loan Will 
be Used to Fund the Loan Loss Reserve. The Loan Will 
be Forgiven, Unless Not Able to Use for the Loan Loss 
Reserve. Unsecured by the Foundation's Microenterprise  
Loan Program. 50,000                50,000                

Note Payable - Paycheck Protection Program Loan
Face Amount $385,458, Interest at 1.0%, and will be 
Due May 12, 2026, Unsecured. See Note 2 for Details. 
Forgiven in full in 2022. -                          385,458              

Note Payable - U.S. Small Business Administration
Face Amount $580,000, Bears interest at 1.25%, Due 
June 2029, Monthly Interest and Principal Payments, 
Secured by the Foundation's Microenterprise Loan Program. 490,477              534,587              

Unamortized Discount (4,193)                 (6,481)                 

Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs (20,487)               (31,661)               

Total 1,412,324           2,278,432           

Less: Current Maturities 536,052              707,213              

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities 876,272$            1,571,219$         
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Maturity requirements for the next five years on long-term debt are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2023 536,052$         
2024 333,246           
2025 99,733             
2026 101,217           
2027 102,725           

Thereafter 264,031           
Total 1,437,004$      

 
 
Federal Microlending Agreements and Restricted Cash 

Under the Foundation’s Small Business Administration (SBA) and U.S. Department of 
Agriculture Rural Microentrepreneur Assistance Program (USDA-RMAP) loan agreements, 
the Foundation is required to keep all cash in separate accounts to be used for 
administrative costs, debt service, and re-lending. Restricted cash under the SBA and 
USDA loan agreements amounted to $435,422 and $862,451 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 
 
 

NOTE 10 NET ASSETS 

Net assets without donor restrictions that are designated by the board of directors consisted 
of the following at June 30: 
 

2022 2021
Endowment Funds 15,957,623$    23,820,359$    
Affiliate Funds 944,865           907,989           
Component Funds 1,978,960        2,462,642        
Economic Development 55,867             30,867             
Grants Program 834,690           827,698           

Total 19,772,005$    28,049,555$    
 

 
Net assets with donor restrictions for specific purposes or time restrictions consisted of the 
following at June 30: 
 

2022 2021
Affiliate Funds 1,895,418$      3,319,529$      
Component Funds 1,580,136        226,932           
Subject to UPMIFA Appropriations 2,273,023        6,112,309        
Economic Development 10,892,533      10,181,757      
Programs 194,599           230,938           

Total Purpose Restricted 16,835,709      20,071,465      

Operating 2,500,000        1,000,000        
Total Time Restricted 2,500,000        1,000,000        

Total Donor Restricted Net Assets 19,335,709$    21,071,465$    
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NOTE 10 NET ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Net assets with donor restrictions to be held in perpetuity consisted of the following at 
June 30: 
 

2022 2021
Endowment Funds 21,908,771$    21,853,102$    
Affiliate Funds Endowed 5,750,664        5,093,550        
Component Funds Endowed 10,880,393      10,416,640      
Farmland Giving Program 2,938,292        2,898,934        

Total 41,478,120$    40,262,226$    
 

 
With donor restricted net assets were released from donor restrictions during 2022 and 2021 
by incurring expenses satisfying the restrictions.  
 

2022 2021
Purpose Restrictions Accomplished 2,057,605$      3,429,230$      
Time Restrictions Expired 1,000,000        -                       

Total Net Assets Released 3,057,605$      3,429,230$      
 

 
Endowment funds reflected as with donor restrictions represent donations received by the 
Foundation. Endowment funds which receive a match from the Foundation’s Board are 
represented as board-designated in the respective fund. 
 
Affiliate Funds and Component Funds reflected as with donor restrictions represent 
contributions restricted by the donors. Investment earnings on these funds are with donor 
restrictions unless an endowed fund is in a deficit position. Aging Trust Funds are a 
significant part of the component funds and the portion that is reflected as with donor 
restrictions represents contributions restricted by the donors and investment income 
restricted until the balance reached $1,000,000. Having reached this level, investment 
income on contributions is reflected in with or without donor-restricted Aging Trust Funds. 
The without donor restrictions portion of the Aging Trust Fund represents investment income 
earned and satisfaction of usage restrictions on the with donor-restricted dollars. The with or 
without donor-restricted dollars are for projects that promote productive aging in the region.  
 
The Keep it GrowingSM Farmland Giving Program reflects donations of farmland to the 
Foundation as with or without donor restricted net assets. Donations may be accompanied 
with a life estate. Once any life estate liability is removed, the earnings on endowed parcels 
are represented as with donor restrictions for the purpose chosen by the donor and earnings 
on parcels remain without donor restrictions. 
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NOTE 10 NET ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Economic Development is made up of Joint Powers Area Community Fund (JPAC), 
Revolving Loan Fund (RLF), United States Small Business Administration (SBA) Microloan 
Funds, Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development Grant, 
Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development Emerging Entrepreneur 
Loan Program (ELP), United States Department of Agriculture (RMAP) Fund, Employer 
Resource Network®, Career Pathways, Business Initiatives, and several Child Care 
Initiative funds. These funds are reflected as with donor restrictions that consist of grant 
dollars or loan dollars received and some investment income restricted by the grantor for 
loans. Other funds income is without donor restrictions within the Economic Development 
umbrella and used to fund administration. Some of these funds with loan dollars must be 
repaid.  
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Foundation administered funds for the Minnesota 
Department of Employment and Economic Development (DEED) program for their Main 
Street COVID relief Grant Program. These grant applications were selected through a lottery 
process at DEED, verified for eligibility by the Foundation, and disbursed if the application 
and supporting documents met the DEED grant program requirements. 
 
Program funds reflected as with donor restrictions consist of grants and donations received 
which have been restricted by the grantor/donor for the Foundation to deliver programs and 
make grants. 
 
 

NOTE 11 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The Foundation uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain 
assets and to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on how the 
Foundation measures fair value, refer to Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies. The following table presents the fair value hierarchy for the balances of the assets 
of the Foundation measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2022: 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments:

U.S. Government Obligations 2,663,300$    -$                   -$                   2,663,300$    
Corporate Bonds -                     6,784,680      -                     6,784,680      
Stock Mutual Funds 31,597,193    -                     -                     31,597,193    
Equity Securities -                     -                     531,947         531,947         
Taxable Bond Mutual Funds 9,603,236      -                     -                     9,603,236      
Foreign Bonds, Notes, and

Debenture -                     2,848             -                     2,848             
Charitable Remainder 
  Trust Investments -                     -                     193,250         193,250         
Investment Held in Trust -                     -                     1,729,491      1,729,491      
*Alternative Investments with
Hirtle Callaghan - NAV -                     -                     -                     14,678,449    

Total 43,863,729$  6,787,528$    2,454,688$    67,784,394$  

2022
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NOTE 11 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy for the balances of the assets of the 
Foundation measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2021: 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments:

U.S. Government Obligations 3,785,276$    -$                   -$                   3,785,276$    
Corporate Bonds -                     9,834,588      -                     9,834,588      
Stock Mutual Funds 38,943,839    -                     -                     38,943,839    
Equity Securities -                     -                     489,416         489,416         
Taxable Bond Mutual Funds 7,096,196      -                     -                     7,096,196      
Foreign Bonds, Notes, and

Debenture -                     2,247             -                     2,247             
Charitable Remainder 
  Trust Investments -                     -                     240,293         240,293         
Investment Held in Trust -                     -                     1,729,491      1,729,491      
*Alternative Investments with
Hirtle Callaghan - NAV -                     -                     -                     17,717,244    

Total 49,825,311$  9,836,835$    2,459,200$    79,838,590$  

2021

 
 

*In accordance with Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that are measured at fair value 
using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been classified in 
the fair value hierarchy, but are included under the total column. The fair value amounts 
presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the 
amounts presented in the consolidated statements of financial position. 
 

As a part of the Foundation’s Investment Policy Statement (IPS), Level 2 assets are utilized. 
These Corporate Bonds and U.S. Government Obligations invest in United States 
government securities, sponsored agencies, and corporate securities. The fair value of the 
investments in this category is based on quoted market prices for the underlying investment.  
 

Level 3 Assets 

The following table presents the Foundation’s fair value hierarchy for those assets and 
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2022 and 2021: 
 

Principal

Valuation Unobservable Discount

Instrument 2022 2021 Technique Inputs Rate

Equity Securities 531,947$               489,416$               FMV of Value of N/A

Investments Underlying

Assets

Charitable Remainder 193,250$               240,293$               FMV of Trust Time N/A

Trust Investments Investments Period of 

Trust

Investments Held in Trust 1,729,491$            1,729,491$            Discounted Discount Rate 3.20%

Cash Duration

Flows

Fair Value
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NOTE 11 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 

For the Charitable Remainder Trust Investments (CRUT), see Note 1 header Obligations of 
Split-Interest Agreements for further details on the valuation of this investment. In addition, 
for the Investments Held in Trust, see Note 4. There were no transfers in nor transfers out of 
Level 3 investments during both the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 
 
From time to time, the Foundation may be required to record at fair value other assets and 
liabilities on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with guidance in the broad transactions 
standard regarding fair value measurements and disclosures. These adjustments to fair 
value usually result from the application of the lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write 
down of individual assets. Nonfinancial assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring 
basis would include other real estate owned and other intangible assets measured at fair 
value for impairment assessment.  
 
Certain assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. These assets are not 
measured at fair value on an ongoing basis; however, they are subject to fair value 
adjustments in certain circumstances, such as there is evidence of impairment or a change 
in the amount of previously recognized impairment. 
 
For both the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, there were no losses related to 
nonrecurring fair value measurements. 
 
Net Asset Value 

The Foundation values certain investment holdings at fair value using their net asset value 
and has the ability to redeem its investment with the investee at net asset value per share 
(or its equivalent) at the measurement date. Fair value measurements of investments in 
certain entities that calculate net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as of June 30, 
2022: 
 

Unfunded Redemption Redemption

Investment Category NAV Commitments Frequency Notice Period

Hirtle Callaghan Total Return 

Offshore Fund II Limited 2,549,187$          -$                     In liquidation N/A

Hirtle Callaghan Select 

Equity Fund, LP 8,589,107            -                       Quartlery 90 Days

Hirtle Callaghan Alternative Credit

Opportunities Offshore Portfolio Limited 2,374,511            1,248,646         Quarterly 90 Days

Hirtle Callaghan Private Equity

Offshore Fund 2020 Limited 1,091,406            2,070,827         N/A N/A

Hirtle Callaghan Private Equity

Offshore Fund 2022 A Limited 74,238                 4,402,938         N/A N/A

Total 14,678,449$        7,722,411$       
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NOTE 11 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Fair value measurements of investments in certain entities that calculate net asset value per 
share (or its equivalent) as of June 30, 2021: 
 

Unfunded Redemption Redemption

Investment Category NAV Commitments Frequency Notice Period

Hirtle Callaghan Total Return 

Offshore Fund II Limited 5,335,575$          -$                     In liquidation N/A

Hirtle Callaghan Select 

Equity Fund, LP 10,187,340          -                       Quartlery 90 Days

Hirtle Callaghan Alternative Credit

Opportunities Offshore Portfolio Limited 1,896,289            1,675,343         Quarterly 90 Days

Hirtle Callaghan Private Equity

Offshore Fund 2020 Limited 298,040               2,708,579         N/A N/A

Total 17,717,244$        4,383,922$       

 
This category includes investments in funds of limited partnerships that pursue multiple 
strategies intended to diversify risk, reduce volatility and/or enhance returns. The funds 
include investments in common stocks (Hirtle Callaghan Select Equity Fund, LP); private 
equity (Hirtle Callaghan Private Equity Offshore Fund 2020 Limited and Hirtle Callaghan 
Private Equity Offshore Fund 2022 A Limited); private credit (Hirtle Callaghan Alternative 
Credit Opportunities Offshore Portfolio Limited); and hedge fund vehicles (Hirtle Callaghan 
Total Return Offshore Fund II Limited, which is in the process of being liquidated). The fair 
value of the investments in each one is based on the fund’s audited net asset value per 
share multiplied by the Foundation’s units owned as of June 30, 2022 and 2021. 
 
 

NOTE 12 ENDOWMENT  

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Foundation’s endowment consisted of 144 and 142 funds, 
respectively, which were established for a variety of purposes. Its endowment includes both 
donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the board of directors to 
function as an endowment. As required by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment 
funds, including funds designated by the board of directors to function as endowments, are 
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
Interpretation of Relevant Law 

The board of directors of the Foundation has interpreted the Minnesota Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair 
value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment fund absent 
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation 
retains in perpetuity the original value of the gifts to the endowment and the value of 
subsequent gifts to the endowment. Donor-restricted amounts not retained in perpetuity are 
subject to appropriation for expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with the 
standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.  
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NOTE 12 ENDOWMENT (CONTINUED) 

Interpretation of Relevant Law (Continued) 

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following factors in making a 
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: 
 

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund 
(2) The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund  
(3) General economic conditions  
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation 
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments  
(6) Other resources of the organization 
(7) The investment policies of the organization 

 
Endowment composition by type and changes in endowment net assets for the year ended 
June 30, 2022 is as follows: 
 

Without With
Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions  Total

Endowment Net Assets,
  July 1, 2021 23,547,096$         43,675,542$         67,222,638$         

Investment Return:
Interest, Dividends 
  and Realized Gains 4,331,194             2,185,910             6,517,104             
Unrealized Losses (10,163,985)          (5,259,351)            (15,423,336)          

Total Investment Return (5,832,791)            (3,073,441)            (8,906,232)            

Contributions -                            1,127,613             1,127,613             

Appropriations of Endowment
  Assets for Expenditure (2,616,794)            (707,324)               (3,324,118)            

Transfers 717,673                (170,177)               547,496                

Endowment Net Assets,
  June 30, 2022 15,815,184$         40,852,213$         56,667,397$         
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NOTE 12 ENDOWMENT (CONTINUED) 

Interpretation of Relevant Law (Continued) 

Endowment composition by type and changes in endowment net assets for the year ended 
June 30, 2021 is as follows: 
 

Without With
Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions  Total

Endowment Net Assets,
  July 1, 2020 15,952,379$         38,793,007$         54,745,386$         

Investment Return:
Interest, Dividends 
  and Realized Gains 1,657,884             786,111                2,443,995             
Unrealized Gains 7,781,457             3,719,317             11,500,774           

Total Investment Return 9,439,341             4,505,428             13,944,769           

Contributions -                            1,156,537             1,156,537             

Appropriations of Endowment
  Assets for Expenditure (636,287)               -                            (636,287)               

Transfers (1,208,337)            (779,430)               (1,987,767)            

Endowment Net Assets,
  June 30, 2021 23,547,096$         43,675,542$         67,222,638$          
 
The following is a summary of endowment funds composition for the years ended June 30: 
 

Without With
2022 Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions  Total

Donor-Restricted Endowment Funds -$                          40,852,213$         40,852,213$         

Board-Designated Endowment Funds 15,815,184           -                            15,815,184           
Total Funds 15,815,184$         40,852,213$         56,667,397$         

 
 

Without With
2021 Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions  Total

Donor-Restricted Endowment Funds -$                          43,675,542$         43,675,542$         

Board-Designated Endowment Funds 23,547,096           -                            23,547,096           
Total Funds 23,547,096$         43,675,542$         67,222,638$         
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NOTE 12 ENDOWMENT (CONTINUED) 

Investment Objectives and Strategies 

The Foundation has adopted an investment policy to provide guidelines for investing 
endowment assets. Under this policy, as approved by the board of directors, the endowment 
assets are invested in a manner that is intended to maintain the purchasing power of the 
current assets and all future contributions, maximize return within reasonable and prudent 
levels of risk, and maintain an appropriate asset allocation based on a total return policy that 
is compatible with a flexible spending policy. To achieve these objectives, the Foundation 
follows an asset diversification plan, sets performance benchmarks for investment 
managers, and has established various asset quality and limitations thresholds. The 
Foundation expects its endowment funds, over time, to provide an average rate of return of 
7%. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. 
 
Spending Policy 

The Foundation appropriates for distribution each year an additional 2% of last year’s 
spendable allotment plus 4% of any total gifts given to the fund during the prior 12-month 
period. The spendable funds are an allotment of the earnings on the fund and board action 
is required to allow spending if the amount is less than 3% or more than 6% of the fund 
balance. Spending will take place only if earnings are present in the fund. For funds that are 
new and have no historical spendable amount, a calculation of 5% of the average daily 
balance will take place for the first year. The transfers in the column without donor 
restrictions consist of the general endowment 5% spendable calculation and transfers of 
match to affiliate funds. Transfers in the column with donor restrictions is made up of the 5% 
spendable calculations of affiliate and component funds. 
 
Funds with Deficiencies 

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with the individual donor-restricted 
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the 
Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In accordance with GAAP, 
deficiencies of this nature are reported in net assets with donor restrictions which amounted 
to 24 and -0-, underwater endowment funds with total balances of $(143,364) and $-0-, for 
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
 
 

NOTE 13 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment 
by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including 
amounts previously collected, may constitute a liability for the applicable funds. The amount, 
if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this 
time; although the Foundation expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
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NOTE 14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN 

The Foundation maintains a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. The plan covers employees of the Foundation who work at least 
20 hours per week. The Foundation contributes up to 5% of gross salaries for qualified 
employees to the Plan. Employees may make contributions to the Plan up to the maximum 
allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. Plan expenses were $85,402 and $82,059 for the 
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
 
A 457(b) deferred compensation plan is maintained by the Foundation for certain members 
of management. It is a nonqualified deferred compensation plan subject to the claims of 
creditors. The Foundation contributed approximately $35,000 and $26,000 for the years 
then ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. No employee contributions have been 
made to the plan. 
 
 

NOTE 15 GRANTS MADE 

The Foundation made grants in the following categories during the years ended June 30: 
 

2022 2021
Business Initiatives 4,520,000$      4,765,000$      
Community Initiatives 878,853           1,010,645        
Aging 122,034           219,133           
Youth 1,050,368        1,235,346        
Leadership 49,037             244,000           

Total Grants Made 6,620,292$      7,474,124$      
 

 
 

NOTE 16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Foundation enters into transactions with directors and key management personnel in 
the ordinary course of business. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, donations 
from these individuals to the Southwest Initiative Foundation totaled approximately $27,000 
and $33,000, respectively. 
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NOTE 17 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

Financial assets available for general expenditure without donor restrictions limiting their use 
within one year of the consolidated statements of financial position date, consists of the 
following: 
 

2022 2021
Description:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 455,854$       164,496$       
Investments 6,257,782      10,886,932    
Other Receivables -                     614
Board-Designated - Quasi-Endowment Fund 15,944,087    22,617,330    
Board-Designated - Program Use 3,827,918      5,432,225      

Total 26,485,641$  39,101,597$  
 

 
As part of the Foundation’s liquidity management, it structures its financial assets to be 
available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. The 
Foundation invests its without donor restricted assets in short term and income strategies, 
the quasi-endowment assets in a long-term strategy, and the program use assets in a 
mixture of strategies. The quasi-endowment assets above represent earnings on the 
Foundation’s endowment which are subject to the annual spending policy; any additional 
amount would be available only by a vote of the board of directors. The Foundation has 
additional endowment funds and those assets are recorded as with donor restricted. These 
assets are not listed above due to the donor restrictions in place. 
 
The $15,944,087 and $22,617,330 for the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively, is subject to the endowment spendable calculation (see Note 12). As a part of 
this calculation, approximately $1,954,000 and $1,912,000, respectively, will be drawn into 
operations over the next 12 months. Although the Foundation does not intend to spend 
more than the spendable allotment from the quasi-endowment, the board of directors could 
make these funds available if necessary. 
 
The board designated assets set aside for program use will be spent when the program 
restriction has been met. The board of directors has the discretion to change the program 
limitation but does not intend to make any changes at this time. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Southwest Initiative Foundation 
Hutchinson, Minnesota 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of 
Southwest Initiative Foundation, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of 
June 30, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2022. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Southwest 
Initiative Foundation‘s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing 
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Foundation’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

St. Cloud, Minnesota 
September 26, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 

MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Southwest Initiative Foundation 
Hutchinson, Minnesota 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2022. Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
In our opinion, Southwest Initiative Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements 
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under 
those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the 
Audit of Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of Southwest Initiative Foundation and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to 
Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s federal programs. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will 
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s compliance with the requirements of each 
major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s compliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

St. Cloud, Minnesota 
September 26, 2022 
 



SOUTHWEST INITIATIVE FOUNDATION 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 
 

(45) 

 
Federal 

Assistance Pass-Through Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Listing Entity Identifying Through to Federal

Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

Department of Agriculture
Direct Program:

Rural Microentrepreneur Assistance Program - TA Grant 10.870 -$                 37,603$       
Rural Microentrepreneur Assistance Program (Note 3) 10.870 -                   264,402       

Total Rural Microentrepreneur Assistance Program -                   302,005       

Small Business Administration
Direct Program:

Microloan Program - Technical Assistance 59.046 -                   269,544       
Microloan Program (Note 3) 59.046 -                   810,497       

Total Microloan Program -                   1,080,041    

Department of Education
 Pass-Through Program through MN Department of Education

(COVID-19) Governors Emergency Education Relief Fund 84.425C -                   210,858       

Total Federal Awards -$                 1,592,904$  

 
 

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the 
federal award activity of Southwest Initiative Foundation under programs of the federal 
government for the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented 
in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of 
Southwest Initiative Foundation, it is not intended to and does not present the financial 
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Southwest Initiative Foundation. 
 
 

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the cash basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits 
made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. 
Southwest Initiative Foundation has elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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NOTE 3 FEDERAL LOAN PROGRAM 

The federal loan program listed subsequently is administered directly by Southwest Initiative 
Foundation, and balances and transactions relating to this program are included in 
Southwest Initiative Foundation‘s basic consolidated financial statements. Loans 
outstanding at the beginning of the year and loans made during the year are included in the 
federal expenditures presented in the Schedule. The balance of loans outstanding at  
June 30, 2022 consists of: 
 

Federal Assistance Balance 
Program Listing Number Outstanding

Rural Microentrepreneur Assistance Program 10.870 246,196$            

Microloan Program 59.046 584,100              

Total Federal Loans Outstanding 830,296$            
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Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

2. Internal control over financial reporting:

•   Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

•   Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None reported

3. Noncompliance material to financial
 statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

1. Internal control over major federal programs:

•   Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

•   Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None reported

2. Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
    major federal programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are
   required to be reported in accordance
   with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of Major Federal Programs

Federal Assistance Listing Number(s)

10.870  Rural Microentrepreneur Assistance Program
84.425C Governors Emergency Education Relief Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No

Section l - Summary of Auditors' Results

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
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Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

Section ll - Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Section lll - Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Programs
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